
 
CDRPA Meeting Agenda June 8th, 2021 Page 1 of 2 

 
 

 
  

                   
Working Together to Enhance the Economic Vitality of North Central Washington 

 
 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Meeting Agenda 
June 8th, 2021 

9:00 am 
 
 

In order to maximize social distancing related to COVID-19, the meeting 
 will be held at the CTC and remotely using Zoom Virtual Conference. 

   
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
*Note: When the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority meeting is called to order, the Port of Chelan 
County and Port of Douglas County meetings are simultaneously called to order. 

  
II. INTRODUCTIONS 
 
III. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
IV. CONSENT AGENDAS 
 

CDRPA: Approval of Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Minutes of May 25th, 2021 
Meeting; and Check Register Pages #2021-16-#2021-18, including Electronic Transfers 
 
POCC: Approval of Port of Chelan County Check Register Page #2021-06 
 

V. PRESENTATIONS 
 

VI. CDRPA ACTION ITEMS   
(1) HVAC – Phase II Executive Flight Building Project 
(2) Authorization to Retain DOH Associates – CTC Shell & Core Restoration Project 

(former Actapio space) 
(3) First Addendum to Purchase & Sale Agreement – S.P.O.R.T. 
(4) Authorization to Purchase David Piepel Property 
(5) Approval of Ownership Allocation Memo – David Piepel Property 

 
VII. POCC ACTION ITEM 

(6) POCC Surplus Property Hearing – Lojo Property 
(7) POCC Resolution No. 2021-03 Surplus Property Resolution – Lojo Property 
 
CDRPA ACTION ITEM 
(7a) CDRPA Concurrence with POCC Resolution No. 2021-03 Surplus Property-Lojo   
 

VIII. CDRPA INFORMATIONAL ITEMS (Board may take action on any items listed)  
(8) Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting (ARFF) Review 
(9) CTC Landscape Option 
(10) History of Chelan Airport & Review Current Interlocal Agreement 
(11) Property Marketing – Drone Videos Phase II 

 
 
 



 
CDRPA Meeting Agenda June 8th, 2021 Page 2 of 2 

 
 

IX. MISCELLANEOUS STAFF REPORTS 
• CEO 
• Director of Finance & Administration 
• Director of Airports 
• Director of Economic & Business Development 
• Public Works & Capital Projects Manager 
• Property & Maintenance Manager 
• CTC Manager 

 
X. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
XI. REVIEW CALENDAR OF EVENTS 

 
XII. ITEMS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
XIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION: An Executive Session may be called during the meeting.  The purpose 

must be announced and is limited by RCW 42.30.110.  Examples include: (1) to discuss with legal 
counsel litigation, potential litigation and/or legal risks (RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)); (2) to consider the 
acquisition of real estate by lease or purchase when public knowledge regarding such consideration 
would cause a likelihood of increased price (RCW 42.30.110(1)(b)); and (3) to consider the 
minimum price at which real estate will be offered for sale or lease when public knowledge regarding 
such consideration would cause a likelihood of decreased price (final action selling or leasing public 
property shall be taken in a meeting open to the public)(RCW 42.30.110(1)(c)); and (4) to evaluate 
the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the performance of a public 
employee(RCW 42.30.110(1)(g)) 

 
XIV.  ADJOURN 

 
PLEASE NOTE:  The agenda is tentative only. The Board of Directors may add, delete, or postpone items and may take 
action on any item not on the agenda. The Directors may also move agenda items during the meeting. 
If you wish to address the Regional Port Authority on a non-agenda or an agenda item, please raise your hand to be 
recognized by the President.  When you have been recognized, give your name and address before your comments. 
The Board of Directors is committed to maintaining a meeting atmosphere of mutual respect and speakers are 
encouraged to honor this principal. 

 
The Port Authority office is ADA compliant. Please contact the Administrative Office at 509-884-4700 at least three (3) 
days in advance if you need any language, hearing or physical accommodation.  



 May 25th, 2021 Page 1 of 4  

 

             
    
            

            Board of Directors 
 Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 

   Meeting Minutes 
  May 25th, 2021 

9:00 am 
 
Present:  Directors    
 JC Baldwin, Director    Jim Huffman, Director   
 Rory Turner, Director    W. Alan Loebsack, Director   
 Donn Etherington, Director        Mark Spurgeon, Director   
  
 Staff 
 Jim Kuntz, Chief Executive Officer   Monica Lough, Dir. of Finance & Admin.  
 Trent Moyers, Director of Airports  Ron Russ, Property Manager  
 Ron Cridlebaugh, Dir. of Economic Dev.   Craig Larsen, Econ. Dev. Manager   
 Stacie de Mestre, Public Works & Cap. Projects Mgr. Tricia Degnan, CTC Manager (Zoom) 
 Cami Harris, Executive Assistant  Sarah Deenik, Comm. Coordinator (Zoom) 
 Bealinda Tidd, Accounting Specialist (Zoom)  Quentin Batjer, Legal Counsel  
 Randy Asplund, Port Engineer (Zoom)   Laura Camarillo Reyes, CTC Asst. (Zoom) 
  
 Guests    

Mayor Bob Goedde, City of Chelan (Zoom)   Chris Mansfield, T.O. Engineers (Zoom) 
Erin McCardle, City of Chelan (Zoom)  Aaron Buob, T.O. Engineers (Zoom)  
Erik Howe, RH2 (Zoom)  Mark Napier, JUB (Zoom)   
Ray Dobbs (Zoom)  Tim Ike, JUB (Zoom) 
Linda Haglund, Wen. Downtown Assoc. (Zoom) Jerri Barkley, Wen. Valley Chamber (Zoom) 

 
 
The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority (CDRPA) Meeting was called to order 
at 9:00 am. Due to COVID-19 restrictions, the meeting was held at Confluence 
Technology Center and via Zoom as previously posted in the required Public 
Meeting Notice. 
 
Introductions were made.  
 
Kuntz requested an Action Item be added to the agenda to authorize a submittal of an FAA 
Aviation Grant for the Waterville Airport. The Board concurred to add it to the agenda. 
 
Conflict of Interest: None 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
CDRPA CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Consent Agenda consisting of Minutes of May 
11th, 2021 Meeting; and April 2021 Commission Meeting Calendar was presented and the 
following action was taken:  
 

 
Motion No.  05-09-21 CDRPA 

  Moved by:    Mark Spurgeon 
  Seconded by:  Donn Etherington 

To approve the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Consent Agenda 
consisting of Minutes of May 11th 2021 Commission Meeting; and April 
2021 Commission Meeting Calendar, as amended. 
 
     Motion passed 6-0. 
 



 May 25th, 2021 Page 2 of 4  

 
   

PRESENTATION: 
 
Chelan Airport Master Plan – Kuntz reviewed the proposed Chelan Airport Master Plan and 
provided a list of short-term, intermediate, and long-term capital projects for the airport. 
Mayor Goedde provided comments. Discussions ensued and the following action was taken: 
 

Motion No.  05-10-21 CDRPA 
  Moved by:    JC Baldwin 
  Seconded by:  Rory Turner  

To approve the Chelan Airport Master Plan and authorize the CEO to 
sign the Airport Layout Plan, subject to the concurrence of the City of 
Chelan. 

      
           Motion passed 6-0. 
 
ACTION ITEMS: 
 
Authorization to Seek Bids – Pangborn Airport Aviation Ramp Project – Staff  
reviewed the scope of work for the Pangborn Airport Aviation Ramp Project. The project 
includes reconstructing/expanding the terminal apron, installing a glycol collection system, 
replacing concrete and hardscape at the terminal entrance, and addressing taxiway/runway 
issues. Staff recommended a concrete option for the apron; the Board concurred. The 
following action was taken:  
 

Motion No.  05-11-21 CDRPA  
  Moved by:    Rory Turner 
  Seconded by:  Mark Spurgeon  

To authorize the CEO to solicit bids for the Pangborn Airport Aviation 
Ramp Project, specifically the concrete apron option.   
   

           Motion passed 6-0. 
 
Waterville Airport Pavement Rehabilitation Project Revised Budget – de Mestre 
reported the Waterville Airport Rehabilitation Project preconstruction meeting was held on 
May 13. During a site visit, the project engineers discovered far more significant cracks than 
originally estimated. This additional work increases the project budget by $54,830.40, for an 
overall budget not to exceed $280,300. Discussion ensued and the following action was 
taken:  

 
Motion No.  05-12-21 CDRPA 

  Moved by:    JC Baldwin 
  Seconded by:  Jim Huffman  

To establish a revised Waterville Airport Pavement Rehabilitation Project 
Budget in an amount not to exceed $280,300, including WSST. 

      
           Motion passed 6-0. 
 
CDRPA Resolution No. 2021-12 Authorizing the Submittal of a Washington State 
Department of Transportation (WSDOT) Aviation Grant for the Waterville Airport 
Lighting Project – Kuntz presented CDRPA Resolution No. 2021-12 concerning a WSDOT 
Aviation Grant submittal for the Waterville Airport Lighting Project.  The following action was 
taken: 
 

Motion No.  05-13-21 CDRPA 
  Moved by:    Jim Huffman 
  Seconded by:  Rory Turner  

To adopt CDRPA Resolution No. 2021-12 authorizing the submittal of a 
Washington State Department of Transportation Aviation Grant for the 
Waterville Airport. 

      
           Motion passed 5-1. 
         Commissioner Etherington Voted No. 
           
 



 May 25th, 2021 Page 3 of 4  

 
 
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS: 
 

• Regional Port Properties Marketing – Deenik showed several new drone videos 
recently taken as part of new marketing efforts for Regional Port properties. Drone 
videos of all Port properties will be completed shortly and will be posted on the Port 
website and used in various marketing campaigns.  

 
• Economic Development – Port Breakfasts and Lunches – Kuntz requested feedback 

from the Board on how and when to resume the Economic Development events that the 
Port held prior to COVID-19. The Board suggested staff continue with both the breakfast 
and lunch meetings and hold them on different days to attract the most attendees as 
possible.  

 
    

MISC STAFF REPORTS: 
 

 Kuntz provided information and updates including:  
• Reported on discussions with Fire Chief Brian Brett concerning the Aircraft Rescue and 

Firefighting (ARFF) contract with the Regional Port. More information will be brought to 
the Board at the June 8 meeting. 

• Lineage Property update. 
• Reviewed agenda items for June 8 meeting. 
• AAAE Conference is July 11-13 in Las Vegas. A rotation schedule for Board attendance 

at conferences was discussed, with each Port President being offered the opportunity 
to attend. 

 
 Lough provided information and updates including:  

• Reported Financial Statements are due to the state on May 30.   
 
 Russ provided information and updates including: 

•  Update on the Cashmere Mill District flooding issue and remediation efforts. 
 
 De Mestre provided information and updates including:  

•  RFQ’s for the Executive Flight HVAC Phase 2 Project are due today.  
•  IB#2 Pavement Rehabilitation Project bids are due Friday. Recommended bid award 

will be brought to the Board on June 8.   
•  EPA Brownsfield website is now live. The next Brownsfield meeting is on June 2. 
•  Provided an update on the current CWICC Building projects. 

 
 Degnan provided information and updates including:  

• CTC elevators repair update. 
• Update on CTC meeting reservations. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT – An opportunity for public comment was provided; however, no public 
comments were received. 
 
REVIEW CALENDAR OF EVENTS: Did not review. 
 
ITEMS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS: Directors provided various updates. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 May 25th, 2021 Page 4 of 4  

 
 
 
 
Meeting was recessed at 11:45 am until the 1:00 pm NCWEDD lunch event at Badger 
Mountain Brewery. Meeting adjourned at 2:00 pm. 
   
 
Signed and dated this 8th day of June, 2021. 
 
 
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
 
 
  
  
  _________________________________ 
JC Baldwin, Director     Jim Huffman, Director 
 
          
     ________________________________ 
Donn Etherington, Director    Mark Spurgeon, Director 
 
 
___________________________________  _________________________________ 
Rory Turner, Director     W. Alan Loebsack, Director 

























Chelan Douglas Regional 
Port Authority 

 

Memo 
To: Board of Directors  

From: Stacie de Mestre 

cc: Jim Kuntz 

Date: June 3, 2021 

Re: Executive Flight HVAC Replacement Phase 2 – Request for 
Qualifications - Recommendation of Short List 

 
At the February 23, 2021 Board of Directors meeting, Staff was 
authorized to utilize the Design-Build contracting method for Phase 2 
of the Executive Flight HVAC Replacement Project.  As a reminder, 
the following steps would be taken to select a contractor: 

- Publicly advertise a Request for Qualifications from design-build 
HVAC contractors  

- Qualifications will be reviewed and ranked by the Design-Build 
Committee (Jim, Stacie, and Randy) 

- Staff will present the ranked qualifications to the Board and seek 
approval for two contractors to receive a Request for Proposal 

- Proposals will include a technical design and a price proposal.  
The Committee will evaluate the proposals and bring their 
recommendation to the Board for final approval. 

On May 25, 2021 staff received qualifications from the following three 
contractors in response to the RFQ: 

- North Cascades Heating and Air Conditioning, Inc. 
- Apollo Mechanical Contractors 



- Holaday–Parks, Inc. 

The Design-Build Committee evaluated the submittals based on the 
following criteria: 

- Prior Design-Build experience 
- Experience providing innovative solutions to unconventional 

spaces 
- Qualifications of key project team members 
- Quality control approach 
- Ability to meet schedule milestones 
- Understanding of the project and CDRPA goals 

Apollo Mechanical Contractors and Holaday-Parks, Inc. received the 
highest rankings.  Staff is recommending they move to the next phase 
in the contractor selection process and receive the Request for 
Proposal.   



Chelan Douglas Regional 
Port Authority 

 

Memo 
To: Board of Directors  

From: Stacie de Mestre 

cc: Jim Kuntz 

Date: June 3, 2021 

Re: CTC Core and Shell Restoration Project – DOH Task 
Authorization 

 
Please see attached for a Scope of Work and Task Authorization 
submitted by the DOH Associates for design services to restore the 
former Actapio space at the CTC back to the Core and Shell state.  Per 
the lease agreement with Actapio, the CDRPA will be reimbursed up 
to $2 million to return the building to the core and shell state which 
includes construction, engineering, architectural, and permitting 
costs and fees.   
 
Staff is seeking approval to authorize DOH Associates to proceed 
with Task 1 – Construction Documents and Bidding in the amount not 
to exceed $94,660.  Task 2 would be negotiated at a later date.    



 
The DOH Associates 
ARCHITECTS & PLANNERS
A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CORPORAT ION

           

TELEPHONE 509.662.4781  C  FAX 509.663.3253  C  7 N. WENATCHEE AVENUE, SUITE 500  C  WENATCHEE, WA 98801

May 20, 2021

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority

One Campbell Parkway, Suite A Subject: 2119 CTC Shell Restoration

East Wenatchee, Washington 98802 Scope of Work

Attention: Ms. Stacie de Mestre, Public Works and Capital Projects Manager

Ladies / Gentlemen:

Thanks for contacting us regarding the restoration of the Yahoo Japan space at the CTC in Olds Station.

The work items appear to be fairly complicated and we are anticipating additional time to address

some of the individual salvage items.

We are proposing to perform the work for a not to exceed fee of $93,660, plus reimbursables and

construction administration.  We are recommending an overall budget of $173,660 for the overall A/E

services.  

I’m including a copy of Task Authorization 8.0 for Jim’s signature.  Please let me know if you need any

additional information.

Sincerely,
THE DOH ASSOCIATES, PS

Paul R. Coppock

Principal

enclosure



May 20, 2119

CTC Shell Restoration

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority/S. de Mestre

ARCHITECTS & PLANNERS  C  The DOH Associates, PS  C  WENATCHEE, WASHINGTON

Scope of Work

Project

Restore the site, 3rd floor and basement, previously occupied by Yahoo Japan/Actapio,

Inc. to the original state of the shell building.  During the course of the improvements

by Yahoo, the  floor was raised, additional electrical, servers, air conditioning units,

battery systems, etc. were installed.  Window openings were removed or transformed.

Existing HVAC systems were modified or removed.  Lighting and fire sprinklers were

modified for the new layout.  On the site additional transformers were installed along

with HVAC equipment, generators and other equipment.

In the process of the restoration, the Port is has hired a consultant to assist in salvaging

the some of the equipment in a contract separate from the restoration.  The remaining

demolition will be by a general contractor and any remaining salvage materials will be

the property of  the contractor.   The general contractor shall also be responsible  for

removing the equipment 

Salvage

Jim Gylling will act as the consultant for the port district and will dictate what material

is to be included in the salvage contract and will assist in recommendations on proper

handling/packaging of the material.   Jim will prepare or assist  in preparation of all

contracts and arrange bid documents for the salvage contractor.  DOH will include in

the  restoration  contract  instructions  for  the  contractor  to  remove  the  salvaged

equipment and package it for transport by the salvage contractor, and load it onto a

truck.

Restoration

DOH will  include drawings and specifications for permitting and public bid of the

restoration of the CTC spaces identified above to their original shell condition with

some exceptions.  Work items shall include:

• Removal of  all new HVAC  equipment, piping, backflow devices,  controls,  etc.

particularly along the perimeter wall and restoration of the windows and openings

that have been modified.  

• Restore  original  terminal  units  for  the  existing HVAC  as  they were  originally

installed and reconnect to the building HVAC controls system.

• Removal of the existing leak detection systems on the 3rd floor. 

• Removal of all electrical to HVAC, electrical busses, and to any removed equipment.

• Restore the existing fire alarm system to be an extension of the building fire alarm

system and remove all smoke detectors.

• Remove UPS equipment, batteries, wiring, conduit etc.

• Light fixtures will be removed, except for a minimal amount needed for life safety



May 20, 2119

CTC Shell Restoration

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority/S. de Mestre

ARCHITECTS & PLANNERS  C  The DOH Associates, PS  C  WENATCHEE, WASHINGTON

and  to  show  the  space  to  perspective  tenants,  fixtures will  be  consolidated  to

building electrical panels and common switches.

• Fire  suppression  system will  be modified  from  a pre‐action dry  system  to  the

original wet system.  The layout will not be modified because we cannot anticipate

the layout for the future which will likely include a new acoustical ceiling.

• Removal of  the  raised  flooring,  including  the  lift, handrails and  stairs, and  the

adjustment of perimeter controls such as light switches, emergency lights, exit signs,

thermostats, pull stations, etc. to a height appropriate for the original floor.

• Removal of new rooms in the basement and second floor, including vestibules at the

stairs.  

• Patching of  the exiting  floor and capping  the  floor drains  that would no  longer

served by a trap primer.

• Remove the data closet door on the second floor (Room 206), infill and provide an

access door from the hallway to the room.

DOH will prepare construction documents in the form of drawings and specifications,

suitable for obtaining a building permit and competitively bidding the project.

Confirm format of Agreement between Owner and Contractor.

Identify schedule and delivery of work and systems.

Review documents prior to issuance to bid with the owner and governing authorities.

Issue documents and aid in the preparation and issuance for bid. 

Construction Administration

Proposed as an Additional Service, DOH will assist in assembling bids or proposals

from contractors and preparation of an Owner/Contractor agreement.  Review shop

drawing submittals, products, pay applications and the preparation of changes during

construction.  Provide on site observation and attend contractor meetings on a weekly

basis.   Conduct  final  inspection,  assist with  releases  from Contractor,  Surety,  and

Washington State.

Schedule

It is our understanding that the project needs to be completed within 1 year following

the date of June 28th, 2021.  Our initial schedule is based on the  

Contract Approval  June 1, 2021

Salvage List Received June 16, 2021

50% Review June 30, 2021

90% Review July 23, 2021

Building Permit Submittal August 1, 2021

Bid Issue August 5, 2021

Bid Opening August 26, 2021

Bid Award September 2, 2021



May 20, 2119

CTC Shell Restoration

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority/S. de Mestre

ARCHITECTS & PLANNERS  C  The DOH Associates, PS  C  WENATCHEE, WASHINGTON

Building Construction Complete March 31, 2022

Site Construction Complete April 15, 2022

Retainage Release June 28, 2022

Exclusions

Special Inspections and Testing.  

Environmental and Hazardous Materials Surveys.

Stormwater Evaluation/Reports.

Structural Engineering.

Landscape Architecture.

Furnishings and Equipment Selection/Documents.

As‐Builts.

Metering of Existing Electrical Panels

Low Voltage Systems.

Architectural/Engineering Fees

Design through Bidding

Architectural Services 80 hours @ $128 $10,240

360 hours @ $110 $39,600

80 hours @ $84 $6,720

Mechanical Engineer Design $5,800

Drafting $4,900

Electrical Engineer Design/Drafting $15,540

Civil Engineer (Contingency) $11,000

Sub‐Total $93,660

Estimated Reimbursable Expense

A/E in house costs $1,000

Excludes Permit Fees, Bid Set Printing.

Sub‐Total $1,000

Total Not to Exceed Fee $94,660

Construction Administration

Hourly Estimated Budget $79,000

Total Recommended Budget $173,660



 
 

The DOH Associates, PS 
7 N. Wenatchee Ave, Suite 500, Wenatchee, WA  98801 
phone: 509.662.4781  fax: 509.663.3253 

 

General Services – Task Authorization – 8.0 
To Professional Architectural Services Agreement effective May 1, 2018 

Client Name:   Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority   

Project Location:   CTC Building, Olds Station, Wenatchee, Washington   

Schedule:     Construction Complete by 6/28/22 

Professional Services Estimated Fees:  $173,660 to be billed on time and expense. 
     

 

Project:  CTC Shell Restoration DOH No.: 2119 
 

Description of Work to be performed:  

Task 1 

Scope of Work: 

Design Services as outlined in the 5/20/19 Scope of Work document.  Work includes construction documents for the 
restoration of the CTC building 3rd floor and basement back to the original shell configuration.  Included will be 
coordination with a separate salvage contractor to ensure materials are removed and prepared for pick up. 

Design Fee: 

Construction Documents and Bidding, Not to Exceed Fee $93,660 

Estimated Reimbursable Expenses, excluding permit fees, bid set prints $1,000 

Task 2 

Scope of Work: 

Construction administration services for the work associated with Task 1. 

Design Fee: 

Construction Administration, Estimated Fee $79,000 

          Total Recommended Budget $173,660 

Exclusions: Engineering, specifications, fees, environmental reports, renderings.  

  

Accepted for The DOH Associates, PS 

By  

Title President  

Date 5/20/21 

Accepted for the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 

By  

Title Executive Director 

Date  

 

























  
Port of Chelan County Resolution No. 2021-03 Surplus Real Property in POCC Comprehensive Plan-LOJO 
 Page 1 of 3 

PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY RESOLUTION NO. 2021-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT 
OF CHELAN COUNTY DECLARING CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
LOCATED IN MALAGA, CHELAN COUNTY, WASHINGTON AND 
COMMONLY KNOWN AS THE LOJO PROPERTY AS SURPLUS TO THE 
NEEDS OF THE PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY AND AUTHORIZING AN 
AMENDMENT TO REMOVE SAID PROPERTY FROM THE PORT OF 
CHELAN COUNTY’S COMPREHENSIVE SCHEME OF HARBOR 
IMPROVEMENTS (THE “POCC COMPREHENSIVE PLAN”). 
 

 Whereas the Port of Chelan County (the “POCC”) owns real property located in 
Malaga, Chelan County, Washington, and legally described on Exhibit “A”, which is 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Property”);  and 
 
 Whereas the POCC scheduled a public hearing for June 8, 2021, to consider 
declaring the Property as surplus to the POCC’s needs and to amend the POCC 
Comprehensive Plan accordingly; and 
 
 Whereas a staff report was prepared and presented at the hearing and is 
incorporated as part of the record of the hearing; and 
 
 Whereas proper notice of the public hearing was published and an opportunity for 
public testimony was provided at the public hearing; and  
 

Whereas the Board of Directors of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority, as 
the manager of the Property, support and approve the decision to declare the Property 
surplus and amend the POCC Comprehensive Plan accordingly; and 

 
 Whereas following closure of the hearing, the POCC Commissioners discussed and 
concluded that retaining the Property is not absolutely necessary or needed for the POCC’s 
purposes and concluded that the PO03CC Comprehensive Plan should be amended to 
remove the Property from the POCC Comprehensive Plan. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS HEREBY RESOLVE AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The Property legally described on attached Exhibit “A,” which is incorporated herein 

by this reference, is no longer needed or necessary for the POCC’s purposes, and is 
hereby declared to be surplus. 

 
2. The POCC Comprehensive Plan is hereby modified to delete the Property from the 

POCC Comprehensive Plan. 
 
3. Some or all of the Property may be leased or sold on such terms and conditions as 

the Board of Directors of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority deem 
appropriate.  Any decision to lease or sell all or a portion of the Property shall be 
made in a future open public meeting. 

 



  
Port of Chelan County Resolution No. 2021-03 Surplus Real Property in POCC Comprehensive Plan-LOJO 
 Page 2 of 3 

4. Nothing herein precludes the POCC Commissioners from deciding, in the future, to 
incorporate all or a portion of the Property as part of the POCC Comprehensive 
Plan. 

 
ADOPTED by the Commission of the Port of Chelan County, following a hearing, at a public 
meeting thereof held this 8th day of June, 2021. 
 
PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY 
 
 
  
JC Baldwin, Commissioner 
 
 
  
Donn Etherington, Commissioner 
 
 
  
Rory Turner, Commissioner 
 



  
Port of Chelan County Resolution No. 2021-03 Surplus Real Property in POCC Comprehensive Plan-LOJO 
 Page 3 of 3 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Legal Description of Property 

 
 
That portion of Section 35, Township 22 North, Range 21 E.W.M., situate in the County of 
Chelan, State of Washington, more particularly described as follows: 
All of the Northeast quarter of said Section 35 lying Southerly of Chelan County Highway No. 1, 
EXCEPT the Westerly 1130 feet of said subdivision. 
 

 





ARFF & Maintenance Goals 

 

1. Provide Aircraft Rescue & Firefighting Services (ARFF) as required 
by the FAA on the most cost effective basis possible. Least impact to 
the Airport’s budget. 

 

2. Provide greater flexibility for Airport Technicians to perform 
maintenance duties on and off the airport. 

 

Basic ARFF Requirements 

• Must be in the fire station 15 minutes before and 15 minutes 
after each commercial air service flight. 
 

• Must be able to respond to the runway mid-point within 3 
minutes. 
 

• Employees must be certified in ARFF and undergo recurring  
training. 

 
• ARFF truck (paid for largely by FAA Grants). 

 

 



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Interlocal for Fire Protection with Douglas County Fire 

District No. 2 
 

Agreement commenced: January 1, 2014 

Term: One year with automatic renewals, limited to ten total years 
(December 31, 2024) 

May be terminated by either party 90 days prior to December 31st  
 

Assets: 

Airport owns fire station facility and attached apartments 

District owns three modular homes on site (four allowed) 
 

Staffing: 

Airport – Monday thru Friday 5:30 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. 

District – Monday thru Friday 5:30 p.m. to 5:30 a.m. and weekends  

Airport is subject to District calls, although must be discharged by 
7:30 p.m. 

Parties may request coverage by each other (such as holidays), which 
will be reimbursed based on fully burdened hourly rate. 

Minimum Staffing Levels - Each party provides appropriate staffing 
levels in order to have one ARFF firefighter as well as one District-
qualified firefighter available during shifts. 

 

Douglas County Fire Invoices to Airport for Holiday Coverage: 

2020  $2,052.40 

2019  $2,049.96 

2018  $2,014.11 

Airport Invoices to Douglas County Fire: 

2020  $790.60 

2019  $2,152.08 



Options 
 

 

Option 1 

Maintain the existing Interlocal Agreement with DCFD2 and continue 
to have employees with dual responsibility for both airport 
maintenance and firefighting (ARFF & Fire District call outs). 
 

Option 2 

Terminate Interlocal Agreement with DCFD2 and bring ARFF coverage 
internal to Airport. This eliminates DCFD2 call outs and provides more 
work flexibility for maintenance activities on and off the Airport. 

 Option 2-A 

 Hire one additional full-time Airport Technician to help cover 
evening and weekend calls at a cost of $100,000 annually. This 
would give the Airport 6 employees to cover ARFF. 

  Option 2-B 

  Develop a part-time ARFF employee base. They would need to 
be trained and provided all the equipment. Would be under 
obligation to provide a fixed amount of hours each year. Part-
time employees would be assigned weekends and holiday ARFF 
coverage. Could also fill in for vacation and sick leave. 

 If this option has merit, staff would need to determine costs of 
this model. 

• Pay 
• Training and Equipment Costs 
• Minimum Hour Obligations 

Option 2-C 

 Determine if current FBO employees have interest in upgrading 
skills to include ARFF. Would require additional pay.  



 

Option 3 

Terminate Interlocal Agreement with the DCFD2 and hire a for-profit 
emergency services company to provide ARFF coverage.  This is a 
very expensive option. Rural Metro likely $400,000 plus per year. 

 

Option 4 

Negotiate a new Interlocal Agreement with DCFD2. The Fire District 
provides all ARFF staffing. Per an April 2010 memo, potential cost at 
that time was at least $250,000 annually. 

 

Option 5 

Regional Port builds a new fire station on Union Street with FAA 
funding. DCFD2 provides Airport with ARFF coverage at no cost for 
50 years. 

• Not a priority Capital Project for the Regional Port. 
• Likely 5 to 10 years out. 
• Airport Master Plan calls for an Airport Operations Building. 

o ARFF 
o Fire District Station 
o Snow Equipment Building 

 















Lease Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

Renewal Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Ending

CD Community 
Action Council

Lineage Bldgs G & I 19,560 SQFT 5/31/2021

None Reported for this Period

None Reported for this Period

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority - Lease Report
Leases & Renewals - General
Reporting Period - May 2021

6/8/2021
New Leases 

Executive Director's Authority to Sign Leases

Lease terms of five years duration or less.
Lease payments of $5,000 per month or less.

Tenants Moving Out

Base
Rent/Month

$8,800.00 

Lease Renewals



Lease Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

5/21/2021 CD Community Action Council
3800 Airport Way  

Fire Cache
1,200 SQFT Month to Month $1,000.00

Renewal Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Ending

Amy Hoover Port Aviation/Hangar Hangar 5/25/2021

Scott Prazer 4028 Airport Way Ground Lease 5/31/2021

Lease Renewals

None Reported for this Period

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority - Lease Report
Leases & Renewals - General
Reporting Period - May 2021

6/8/2021
New Leases 

Executive Director's Authority to Sign Leases

Lease terms of five years duration or less.
Lease payments of $5,000 per month or less.

Tenants Moving Out

Base
Rent/Month

$350.00 

$1,514.00 Annual



Lease Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

Renewal Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Ending

None Reported for this Period

None Reported for this Period

None Reported for this Period

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority - Lease Report
Leases & Renewals - General
Reporting Period - May 2021

6/8/2021
New Leases 

Executive Director's Authority to Sign Leases

Lease terms of five years duration or less.
Lease payments of $5,000 per month or less.

Tenants Moving Out

Base
Rent/Month

Lease Renewals











 



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Calendar of Events 6/4/2021

Date Day Event / Location / Time Attending Cami RSVP arrangements if applicable
June 8 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
June 9 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
June 10 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
June 14 Monday 9:30am Douglas County Commissioners Meeting
June 15 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
June 16 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
June 16-18 Wed-Friday WPPA Finance Seminar; Alderbrook (tentative)
June 22 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

June 23 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

June 29 Tuesday Tri Commission Meeting; 1p-3p Zoom
July 5 Monday 4th of July Holiday Observed/Office Closed
July 6-8 Wed-Friday WPPA Director's Seminar; Alderbrook; Jim K.
July 8 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
July 11-13 Sun-Tue AAAAE Conference Rory, Mark, Trent
July 13 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
July 14 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting

July 19-21 Mon-Wednesday
WPPA Commissioner's Seminar; Marcus Whitman Walla 
Walla; tentative

July 20 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
July 21 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
July 27 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

July 28 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

August 10 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
August 11 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
August 12 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
August 17 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
August 18 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
August 24 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

August 25 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

September 6 Monday Labor Day/Office Closed
September 8 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Calendar of Events 6/4/2021

Date Day Event / Location / Time Attending Cami RSVP arrangements if applicable
September 9 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
September 14 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
September 15 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
September 21 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 

September 22-24 Wed-Friday WPPA Environmental Seminar; Alderbrook;not yet booked
September 28 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

September 29 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

October 12 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
October 13 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
October 14 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
October 19 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
October 20 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM

October 20-22 Wed-Friday WPPA Small Ports;Enzian; not yet booked and dates not firm
October 26 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

October 27 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

November 9 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
November 10 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
November 16 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
November 17 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
November 18 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
November 23 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

November 24 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

November 25 Thursday Thanksgiving/Office Closed
November 26 Friday Day After Thanksgiving/Office Closed

December 1-3 Wed-Friday
WPPA Annual Meeting; Hyatt Regency Hotel 
Bellevue;tentative

December 8 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
December 9 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
December 14 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Calendar of Events 6/4/2021

Date Day Event / Location / Time Attending Cami RSVP arrangements if applicable
December 15 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
December 21 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
December 23 Thursday Christmas Holiday Observed Office Closed
December 24 Friday Christmas Holiday Observed Office Closed
December 28 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

December 29 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

December 31 Friday New Years Day Observed/Office Closed


	06-08-2021 Agenda
	Working Together to Enhance the Economic Vitality of North Central Washington
	Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
	Meeting Agenda
	June 8th, 2021


	05-25-2021 Meeting Minutes
	Board of Directors
	Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
	Meeting Minutes
	May 25th, 2021


	CDRPA Check Register Summary
	Check Register 2021-16  05.14.21
	Check Register 2021-17  05.28.21 PR
	Check Register 2021-18  05.28.21
	POCC Check Register Summay
	VI. 1 Executive Flight HVAC Replacement Phase 2 - Shortlist - Memo
	To:
	From:
	cc:
	Date:
	Re:

	VI. 2 CTC Core and Shell Restoration - DOH Task Authorization - Rev Memo
	CTC Core and Shell Restoration - DOH Task Authorization - Rev Memo
	To:
	From:
	cc:
	Date:
	Re:

	CTC Shell Restoration Scope of Work Letter DOH
	CTC Shell Restoration DOH Task Authorization 8

	VI. 3 SPORT Purchase and Sale Memo and Docs
	VI. 4 Piepel Property Memos and Map
	Piepel Property Memos and Map
	PIELEL PROPERTY Map
	Pangborn Runway Protection Zone Land Acquisition Costs


	VI. 5 Piepel Property Ownership Allocation Memo
	VII. 7 POCC Resolution No. 2021-03 Surplus Property LOJO
	VIII. 8a ARFF Memo and Docs
	ARFF Memo and Docs
	ARFF and Maintenance Goals Doc Jim 05-21-2021
	Recap of Douglas County Fire Interlocal Agreement
	ARFF Options Going Forward 05-21-2021
	ARFF Map and Concept Rendering

	VIII. 10 Chelan Airport Memo and History
	05 May Lease Reporting
	CDRPA 06.08.2021
	Aviation Related 06.08.2021
	CTC 06.08.2021

	INFO 2. Van Winkle Letter
	INFO Trent Article
	sport
	X. CDRPA Event Calendar
	Sheet1




